Public Document Pack



Cabinet Minutes

Date: 17 November 2014

Time: 7.00 - 8.55 pm

PRESENT: Councillor R J Scott (Executive Leader of the Council - in the Chair)

Councillor M Hussain JP - Cabinet Member for HR, ICT & Customer Services

Councillor Mrs. LA Adev - Cabinet Member for Community

Councillor Mrs J A Adey - Cabinet Member for Community
Councillor M A Foster - Cabinet Member for Finance

Councillor A R Green - Cabinet Member for Economic Development &

Regeneration

Councillor N B Marshall - Cabinet Member for Planning and Sustainability
Councillor H L McCarthy - Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Strategy

Councillor Mrs J E Teesdale - Cabinet Member for Environment

By Invitation

Councillor I Bates - Leader of the Labour Group

Councillor R Gaffney - Chairman of the Improvement & Review Commission
Councillor D A Johncock - Deputy Cabinet Member for Planning & Sustainability

Councillor B R Pollock JP - Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group
Councillor P R Turner - Deputy Cabinet Member for Finance

Also present: Councillors D J Carroll, Ms P L Lee, J L Richards OBE, T Snaith and

Ms J D Wassell

51 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Knight (Leader of the East Wycombe Independent Group), R Metcalfe (Deputy Cabinet Member for HR, ICT and Customer Service) and A Turner (Leader of the Independent Group).

52 MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the special Cabinet held on 20 October 2014 be approved as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

53 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

54 2014/15 SERVICE PERFORMANCE: Q1 AND Q2

A summary of the year to date position for the Council's performance at service level (local performance indicators), was presented to Cabinet for review, together

with performance details of the measures identified by Cabinet for performance focus.

The following decisions were made to review the performance position as at 30 September 2014 to ensure that the Council was performing at the appropriate level.

RESOLVED: That (i) the performance of the measures identified by Cabinet for performance focus through 2014/15 be noted; and

(ii) the summary of the year to date outturns (April – September) for service performance be received.

55 BUDGET MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 2

The report before Cabinet set out the budgetary position at the end of September 2014 and identified the key issues and actions being taken by officers.

The following decision was made as Cabinet approved a budget each year within the context of a Medium Term Financial Strategy to achieve the Council's priorities. Regular monitoring reports were submitted to Cabinet for review during the financial year, with management actions highlighted to ensure that Cabinet could assess whether any further action was required.

RESOLVED: That the current budgetary position at the end of September 2014, and actions already taken be noted and support be given to the further management actions proposed to ensure that the budget was achieved.

56 STRATEGIC BUDGET & MAJOR PROJECTS PROGRAMME

The report before Cabinet set out the Council's updated position on the Strategic Budget including its approach to the funding of major projects, managing risk, and the potential opportunities which could improve the financial position.

Cabinet were reminded that the Council had approved its current Medium Term Financial Plan in April 2014. The plan had identified that in the short term the Council would be able to deliver a balanced budget (subject to the delivery of its Transformation Programme). However, substantial savings would be needed from 2017/18.

The report also detailed the new proposed major scheme bids together with additional scheme details for approval and release, in relation to the Major Projects Programme which would generate new funding streams. An exempt addendum to the Major Projects Programme was circulated at the meeting for consideration.

Members noted that work would be undertaken again to consider the viability of a business rates pool with some of the Buckinghamshire Authorities to try and retain potential revenue locally.

The following recommendation and decisions were made as under the Council's Constitution and Budget Strategy, the Council reviewed and set a balanced budget each year in line with corporate priorities.

Recommended: That the updated Major Projects Programme and funding bids (2014/15 – 2018/19) set out at appendix 5A and exempt appendix 5B of the report be approved and that a Policy for the use and operation of the Regeneration Fund be brought back to Cabinet / Council for approval prior to the use of any funds.

RESOLVED: That (i) the updated financial projection for the Councils General Fund Revenue Account set out in Appendix C of the report until 2020/21, key assumptions and forward budgetary planning implications be noted:

- (ii) the final decision on whether to join a business rates pooling arrangement from 2015/16 with all other Buckinghamshire Districts, Bucks Fire and Rescue and Bucks County Council be delegated to the Head of Finance and Commercial, the Monitoring Officer, the Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance; and
- (iii) the release of £25,000 from the Business Rates Equalisation Fund to enable financial due diligence to be carried out on Business Rates pooling and support the assessment of the appeals provision for 2014/15 be approved.

57 REFERRAL FROM THE HIGH WYCOMBE TOWN COMMITTEE - ADOPTION OF WORDING TO IDENTIFY PROJECTS IN RECEIPT OF FUNDING FROM THE HIGH WYCOMBE TOWN COMMITTEE COMMUNITY SUPPORT GRANT

The report before Cabinet set out the recommendation from the High Wycombe Town Committee that organisations in receipt of a High Wycombe Town Committee Community Support Grant be requested to use the following preferred wording on publicity materials to acknowledge receipt of the funding: "Funded (or part funded) by the High Wycombe Town Committee of Wycombe District Council". The High Wycombe Town Committee had made the recommendation at its meeting on 16 September 2014.

The following decisions were made to enable identification of those projects which had been funded by the High Wycombe Town Committee Community Support Grant, and for organisations in receipt of such funding to acknowledge High Wycombe Town Committee on their publicity literature and materials.

RESOLVED: That (i) organisations in receipt of a High Wycombe Town Committee Community Support Grant be requested to use the following preferred wording on publicity materials to acknowledge receipt of the funding: "Funded (or part funded) by the High Wycombe Town Committee of Wycombe District Council"; and

(ii) a half-yearly information sheet be issued to the High Wycombe Town Committee listing the grants awarded.

58 INFORMATION SHEETS

Cabinet received the following Information Sheets issued since the last meeting:

4/2014 Complaints, Comments, Compliment – Information and Improvements: Quarter 1 (April – June 2014)

59 FILE ON ACTION TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY

Cabinet received the following files on actions taken under delegated powers:

Community C/47/14 – C/52/14 Environment E/11/14 – E/12/14 Finance F/21/14 – F/22/14 Leader L/14/14 – L/17/14 Planning PS/22/14 – PS/23/14

60 URGENT ITEMS (IF ANY)

IMPROVEMENT AND REVIEW COMMISSION 'CALL IN' OF CABINET DECISION 20 OCTOBER 2014 'RESERVE SITES AND PROGRESSING THE LOCAL PLAN'

Following on from the Cabinet decision on 20 October 2014 regarding the Reserve Sites and Progressing the Local Plan, the Improvement and Review Commission had invoked the "Call in" of the decision at its meeting on 12 November 2014.

The Chairman of the Commission gave a detailed verbal presentation of the Commission's concerns and reasoning behind the suggested recommendations.

The Cabinet Member for Planning and Sustainability gave a comprehensive response to each recommendation and responded to the questions raised. The Cabinet's proposed response to the Improvement & Review Commission's recommendations was circulated at the meeting.

After due consideration, Cabinet voted on each recommendation and decided that they could not accept any of the proposed recommendations for the reasons set out in the appended Cabinet's response.

During consideration of this item, Cabinet confirmed its original decision taken on 20 October 2014 that the five reserve sites be released for development to ensure the best outcome for local people and the District. It was agreed that a one or two page guidance sheet summarising the advantages and disadvantages of proceeding with the decision be produced to aid the public's understanding of the reasons for the decision.

The report was taken as a matter of urgency as the Council's ability to set the right framework for the development of the sites and to secure the best outcomes for the community would be compromised by any delay in making a decision.

The following decisions were made as Option 5 (release of the five reserve sites), had been recommended to assist in delivering housing to contribute towards the Council's rolling five year housing land supply, because of the over-riding importance of ensuring as much local control as possible on the future development of those sites and because the sites had been reserved for development for many years. In order to respond to the strength of public interest and concerns, the decision would be taken forward with the involvement of specific liaison groups, one for each site, together with a High Wycombe roundtable to consider the town wide infrastructure implications. Infrastructure issues in relation to the Slate Meadow site would be considered at the site liaison group.

RESOLVED: That (i) the five recommendations from the Improvement & Review Commission be refused for the reasons set out in the appended Cabinet's response.

- (ii) Cabinet proceed with the original decision taken on 20 October 2014, that:
- (iii) having considered the recommendations of the Local Plan Task and Finish Group meeting of 1st October 2014, the recommendation at Appendix 5 of the 20 October Cabinet report be agreed; and
- (iv) having in mind the issues set out in Appendices 3 and 4 of the 20 October Cabinet report, the reserve sites (Abbey Barn North, Abbey Barn South, Gomm Valley and Ashwells, Slate Meadow, and Terriers Farm as shown in the Plans in Appendix 2 of the 20 October Cabinet report) be released for development to contribute towards the Council's 5 year housing land supply, and the detailed planning of these sites be taken forward with public involvement.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED: That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items as they contain exempt information as defined in Regulation 4(2)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, more particularly as follows:

Minute 56 – Strategic Funding Update – Appendices B & D

Minute 60 - Grange Farm

Minute 61 - Proposed Property Acquisition

Minute 62 - Station Approach, Marlow

Minute 63 - Proposed Development of Land at Holmers Farm

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information (Paragraph 3, Part 1 of schedule 12A, Local Government Act 1972)

[The need to maintain the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosure because disclosure could prejudice the Council's position in any future tender process or negotiations]

Minute 64 – File on Exempt Actions Taken under Delegated Powers

Economic Development & Regeneration Sheet Nos: EDR/51/14 – EDR/62/14

Finance Sheet No: F/01/14

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information (Paragraph 3, Part 1 of schedule 12A, Local Government Act 1972)

[The need to maintain the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosure because disclosure could prejudice the Council's position in any future tender process or negotiations]

61 GRANGE FARM

The report before Cabinet outlined proposals for funding to convert Grange Farm complex into a business centre which could potentially be let to small and medium sized enterprises (SMEs).

The following decisions and recommendation was made as Grange Farm had been previously let to a horticultural company. The main horticultural production facility (poly tunnels), had been re-let but the farmhouse which is a listed building and adjoining barn/granary buildings remained vacant. They did though have potential for re-use by SMEs as 'rural workspace', presenting an investment opportunity that required funding.

RESOLVED: That (i) Grange Farm be converted into a business centre; and

(ii) the sum referred to in paragraph 5 of the report be released.

Recommended: That an addition be made to the Major Projects Programme 2014/15 of the sum referred to in paragraph 1 of the report to fund the conversion of Grange Farm into a Business Centre.

62 PROPOSED PROPERTY ACQUISITION

Cabinet approval was sought for the allocation of funding from the Major Projects Programme to acquire the freehold of retail premises in High Wycombe 'Old Town' and for the refurbishment of the property.

The following decision and recommendation was made as the Council had already successfully intervened in the 'Old Town' by acquiring two vacant shops,

refurbishing and re-letting, creating both regeneration and an income stream. A further opportunity existed to extend the investment, which required funding.

RESOLVED: That the proposed freehold acquisition retail premises in High Wycombe 'Old Town' as set out in paragraph 8 of the report be approved and the sum referred to in paragraph 1 of the report be released.

Recommended: That the addition to the 2014/15 Major Projects Programme of the sum set out in paragraph 1 of the report be approved to fund the proposed acquisition and works to the property referred to in paragraph 7 of the report.

63 STATION APPROACH, MARLOW

The report before Cabinet sought approval to revise the previously agreed freehold disposal terms for Station Approach, Marlow.

The following decision was made to ensure that the freehold disposal of Station Approach was undertaken.

RESOLVED: That the previously approved disposal terms be revised, as detailed in paragraph 6 of the report.

64 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF LAND AT HOLMERS FARM

Cabinet approval was sought to grant a ground lease and release funding to invest in the proposed development of land at Holmers Farm.

The following decision and recommendation was made to invest in the proposed development of land at Holmers Farm.

RESOLVED: That a long leasehold interest of land be granted, and the release of the capital sum set out in paragraph 1 of the report to fund the proposed development of land at Holmers Farm as an investment be approved with detailed terms of the transaction to be delegated to the Major Projects and Estates Executive and Head of Finance and Commercial in consultation with the Leader, Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Regeneration, Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial and District Solicitor.

Recommended: That the addition to the 2014/15 Major Projects Programme of the sum set out in paragraph 1 of the report be approved to fund the proposed works, subject to both planning and the minimum revenue return set out in paragraph 6 of the report.

65 FILE ON ACTION TAKEN UNDER EXEMPT DELEGATED POWERS

Cabinet received the following files on exempt actions taken under delegated powers:

Economic Development & Regeneration: EDR/51/14 - EDR/62/14

Finance: F/01/14

| Chairman | |
|----------|--|

The following officers were in attendance at the meeting:

Karen Satterford - Chief Executive

Ian Hunt - Democratic Services Manager

Catherine - Principal Democratic Services Officer

MacKenzie

Penelope Tollitt - Head of Planning & Sustainability

Minute Item 60

Appendix A

Appendix A

Cabinet Proposed Response to the Recommendations of the Improvement and Review Commission

This Appendix sets out the Cabinet's proposed response to the Improvement and Review Commission's recommendations in relation to the reserve sites. There are 5 recommendations and these are addressed in turn.

Recommendation a) Look into and re-assess the objectively assessed figures for the known homes, homes in pipeline and windfall homes, and that this be done ahead of any decision to release any reserve sites;

Proposed Cabinet response

The objectively assessed need figures have been prepared by specialist consultants having regard to the available national planning policy and guidance for how such assessments should be undertaken. For this work to be reviewed by different consultants would cost in the region of £15-20k and would take in the order of 4-5 months, allowing for 6-8 weeks for the tendering process. It is highly unlikely that such a review would result in fundamentally different figures that lead to a different conclusion in relation to the reserve sites, given that all consultants will work from the same base data from the Office of National Statistics, and to the same Government policy and guidance. It is questionable, therefore, if the additional expenditure would be in the public interest, and the delay would also have negative implications. Alternatively we could wait for the forthcoming additional work with other authorities on housing need to be undertaken but this is likely to result in even greater delay.

The Objectively Assessed Need figure is under close scrutiny. If third parties believe that we are not making an 'objective' assessment of the need they will challenge the assessment through the Local Plan examination, and there is a high risk that the plan would fail. Local Plans are being rejected by Planning Inspectors including the Aylesbury Vale plan at the beginning of the year. Just last week a local plan examination in Cheshire East was suspended, and closer to home the examination of Chiltern District's Delivery Plan (a lower tier plan which amongst other things allocates housing sites to meet their Core Strategy target) was suspended by the Planning Inspector because the authority had not allocated enough homes to meet their objectively assessed need.

During the time that it will take to prepare and adopt the new Local Plan, decisions will need to be taken – such as the release of the reserve sites. If these decisions are based on assessments that are not seen by third parties to be 'objective', it is likely that those decisions would be subject to judicial review, which would add further cost and delay.

There is a view that the Cabinet should be making decisions based on the lower end of the potential housing numbers. However, as Paragraph 37 of the 20th October Cabinet report makes clear, the lower end of the range is based on projections that use older population trends. They are therefore less robust as a basis for

establishing objectively assessed need and the consultants' report highlights this. Basing decisions on this data would be open to challenge. The Cabinet report goes on to note that more recent population projections from the Office of National Statistics are comparable with the mid-range figures produced by the consultants. As such we cannot rely on the lower end of the range on which to base our 5 year housing land requirement on, and the report suggests that our objectively assessed need is likely to be in the mid to possibly higher end.

The Cabinet report also notes that we will be doing more work to firm up the objectively assessed need figure, working with other authorities. This will take place next year, taking account of the latest guidance and latest demographic data. However there is nothing in the latest projections from the Office of National Statistics that suggests there is likely to be a significantly different outcome.

In relation to looking again at the potential for new homes, including homes in the pipeline and windfall homes, this is something that has already been done in assessing our current housing land supply. Paragraph 39 of the Cabinet report indicates a supply of 2,447 homes from sites in the next 5 years (2014-19). This is made up of homes on sites with planning permission but also sites that are in the pipeline without a planning permission where the principle of development is likely to be acceptable and there is a good prospect of them being delivered in the 5 year period. We also include a "windfall allowance" for unidentified sites and for the first time this year have included care home developments in the housing land supply as a result of a relaxation of national guidance issued in March 2014. So in summary we count everything we can, but this has to be justified and we need to be able to demonstrate that the houses will be built within the 5 year period.

We update our 5 year housing land supply assessment every year and will be doing this in the first few months of 2015. However whilst some additional sites may come forward, it is also important to bear in mind that an additional years' worth (say 600 homes) of housing requirement has to be added in because the 5 year supply will be based on the 2015-20 period – ie it gets rolled forward by a year. Given the scale of the potential gap between supply and requirement outlined in paragraph 39 of the Cabinet report (potentially around 1,300 homes), it is extremely unlikely that this gap and the additional year of requirement will be made up by new sites.

Delaying the release of the reserve sites to allow more work to be done on the objectively assessed need and the housing land supply will significantly increase the risk of planning applications coming forward on the reserve sites and the opportunity to work more proactively with the community on development briefs for the sites would be lost. It also significantly increases the risk of other applications coming forward elsewhere in the District, which — unlike the reserve sites — have not been identified in any adopted plan for development, and therefore have not been subject to any process of democratic oversight.

It is therefore proposed that Cabinet do not accept this recommendation.

Recommendation b) Re-assess the core strategy with particular reference to the Green Belt review, before releasing any reserve sites;

It is recognised that aspects of the Core Strategy are out of date, not least policies which set the level of housing to be provided in the District. This is because of the abolition of the South East Plan and the introduction of the concept of objectively assessed housing need.

The Core Strategy was approved through a government examination, and any reassessment or review would also have to go through that process. Changes to planning terminology mean that we now have to prepare Local Plans not Core Strategies. The new Local Plan is therefore the mechanism to review or re-assess the Core Strategy.

The request for the Green Belt review to precede a decision on the reserve sites would seem to be based on the assumption that the review would result in some or all of the Reserve Sites being put into the Green Belt. That would depend on at least four things being agreed at the Local Plan examination. First, that there has been a significant change in circumstance to overturn the principle of development that has been agreed in the most recent adopted plan – this would be difficult to demonstrate, and be closely scrutinised by the land owners. Second that the sites fulfil Green Belt functions – this argument has been won and lost at previous inquiries and examinations. Third, that sites with equivalent capacity could be found – which could be a challenge given the topographical constraints of the small area of the District which is in the Green Belt but outside of the AONB. Fourthly, and most importantly, that through the Duty to Co-operate our neighbouring authorities accept that they should take the development that is 'displaced' from the reserve sites – which is likely to be challenged, and more likely that the outcome would be development of the 'new' sites as well as the reserve sites. Ultimately Government policy requires there to be exceptional circumstances for changing the Green Belt and this test applies as much to adding land into the Green Belt as it does to taking it out.

In any event, as paragraphs 41–48 of the Cabinet report explain, preparation of the new Local Plan will now take longer than originally planned and will not be complete until quite possibly 2018. This delay is particularly due to the problems up and down the country with the Duty to Cooperate and the issue of how to plan for objectively assessed need, and, as is noted in response to Recommendation (a) above, Local Plans are being rejected by Planning Inspectors where they fail to meet their objectively assessed need.

The Green Belt review has to take place as part of the Local Plan review. As the Green Belt is a strategic designation crossing many local authorities, a Green Belt review it is not something that should be done on your own but with other authorities in a wider functional area. Discussions are taking place with other authorities about how this should happen.

As a result of needing to work with authorities, and given the longer timescales for the new Local Plan, the outcome of a Green Belt review and its subsequent examination by a planning inspector is years rather than months away. As such planning applications would long since have been submitted and considered on the reserve sites, without the ability to take account of the implications of the Green Belt review. It is therefore proposed that Cabinet do not accept this recommendation.

Recommendation c) Revisit and test the case for less dwellings because of the District's AONB/green belt circumstances with Government/Planning Inspectors, before releasing any reserve sites;

In September the Cabinet Member for Planning and Sustainability and a planning officer had a discussion with the senior inspector recently responsible for local plans at the Planning Inspectorate on this point. Would we be able to advance an argument that we should have a reduction to the 5 year housing land requirement in advance of the Local Plan process to take account of the constraints of the District? His response was that this is not possible on the basis of current Government policy and guidance. His response is consistent with a ruling from the Court of Appeal in relation to a case in St Albans District, also a Green Belt authority. Whilst practice guidance indicates that full weight may not be attached to the objectively assessed needs until they have been tested through the local plan process, it is clear that objectively assessed need is now the starting point for assessing the 5 year housing land supply. Added to this is the fact that we are considering the reserve sites where the principle of development has been established for many years.

The forum for testing whether the Council should set a housing target that is below its objectively assessed need is through the Local Plan process. This includes the Duty to Cooperate process that would assess whether other local authorities are able to assist with meeting some of Wycombe District's unmet need. As explained elsewhere in this report, and in the Cabinet report of 20 October, this is a lengthy process.

The Leader of the Council has already highlighted his concerns to Government about the issues the Council is facing and did not receive a sympathetic response. Even if the Government decided to take a different approach, this would take time to feed through into changed Government guidance. In the meantime applications would be submitted and assessed against the 5 year requirement calculated on the basis of the current methodology set out in current government policy and guidance.

It is true that the Council has had a good track record over the last decade or so of delivering housing against its approved housing targets. However this has been on the basis of much lower housing targets and assessments of the 5 year housing land supply are not based on past performance but objectively assessed need, and on identifying specific housing sites that are going to deliver housing in the next 5 years.

It is therefore proposed that Cabinet do not accept this recommendation.

Recommendation d) Consult with Officers to revisit what Wycombe District Council can do as a result of being constrained by AONB and Green Belt and to discuss this with DCLG (Department for Communities and Local Government) as to reducing the number of homes needed, as a result of these constraints, before releasing any reserve sites;

This recommendation raises the same issue as recommendation c) regarding the ability to reduce the housing requirement due to the District's constraints, and as such is addressed above.

DCLG do not offer specific advice to individual Councils. To ensure that all Councils get the same advice, and avoiding the risk of real or perceived inconsistencies, DCLG works by issuing national guidance.

DCLG issued further guidance on 6th October to address whether housing and economic needs override constraints on the use of land, such as Green Belt. This guidance re-iterates existing national planning policy, which is that through preparing the Local Plan, and through its examination, we can make a case that the District should not meet all our objectively assessed needs because of its constraints, working through the Duty to Co-operate with neighbouring authorities. Until that time, as is explained in answer to point (c) above, the Inspectorate are using objectively assessed need as a starting point in considering individual planning applications.

Given that the guidance has only recently issued it is extremely unlikely that discussions with the DCLG will result in any further national guidance being issued.

As such the DCLG statement does not change the situation and does not have a bearing on the response to recommendation c) above. It is therefore proposed that Cabinet do not accept this recommendation.

Recommendation e) Investigate and bring forward robust District-wide infrastructure plans in conjunction with other statutory partners, before releasing reserve sites.

Paragraph 72 of the Cabinet report of 20 October sets out the mechanisms for looking at infrastructure issues with the community should the reserve sites be released. This includes the establishment of a round table group of interested parties to look at the collective or more strategic infrastructure implications of development of the reserve sites. Key infrastructure partners would be involved in this work and indeed the Council have already undertaken significant infrastructure assessment work with relevant infrastructure partners. This has included undertaking with Buckinghamshire County Council extensive traffic modelling that factors in potential development from the reserve sites. As a Cabinet we are committed to fully assessing the infrastructure impacts of the reserve sites and to work with the community, infrastructure providers, and developers to secure the right package of improvements. As has been highlighted by the Cabinet Member for Planning and Sustainability to the Improvement and Review Commission in response to the reasons for the call in, we cannot expect or indeed require new development to deal

with all existing infrastructure issues but we can look to new development to address the impacts of the development.

If the sites come forward individually, the infrastructure needs required of that development will also be considered individually, in the light of individual planning applications. By releasing the sites together, the impacts can be considered collectively, ensuring that wider implications can be better taken into account, and ensuring that those implications are built in to any planning applications that then come forward.

Preparing district wide infrastructure plans is an integral part of the preparation of the Local Plan, which, as is explained above, will take a significant amount of time to prepare and resource which would prove difficult to allocate. In the meantime it is likely that planning applications will come forward on the reserve sites. In assessing the applications we will have to take into account in the 5 year housing land supply position, and the existing status of the reserve sites in the adopted Core Strategy, potentially without the benefit of the wider infrastructure impact assessment.

It is therefore proposed that Cabinet do not accept this recommendation.